
 

  
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Planning & Zoning Board/LPA Meeting 
Thursday, April 12, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 

Town Hall Conference Room, 14579 Southern Blvd, Suite 2 
 
Chair Dennis Lipp                  Town Manager Mark Kutney    
Vice Chair Robin Crawford                 Town Clerk Janice M. Moore     
Committee Member Lawrence Corning            Town Planner Jim Fleishmann 
Committee Member Keith Harris           Town Engineer Patrick Figurella 
Committee Member Grace Joyce                           
Alternate Member #1 Veronica Close 
Alternate Member #2 Debi Castiglione 
 

The Planning & Zoning Board meets on the 2nd Thursday of each month  
subject to the filing of applications. It also acts as the Local Planning Agency (LPA).  

 Items for each body are noted on the agenda. 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

1. OPENING 
 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

b. Swearing In  of Alternate Member #2 Debi Castiglione 

 
2. ADJOURNMENT 
 
*************************************************************************** 

 
LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY/PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1. OPENING 

 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 
 

 

Mayor David Browning, Seat 4  
Vice Mayor Ryan Liang, Seat 3  
Councilman Tom Goltzené, Seat 5  
Councilman Ronald. D. Jarriel, Seat 1 
Councilman Jim Rockett, Seat 2 

 
 
 
 
 



2. LARGE -SCALE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENTS: 
 

a. Project # LUP 12-1 (LS): Simon Trust Property 

 Request to: Rescind Multiple Land Use (MLU) and Revert to Rural Residential 5 
(RR-5), in Part, and Assign Commercial Low (CL), in Part. 

b. Project # LUP 12-2 (LS): Simon Trust Property 

  Request to: 1) Amend Objective 1.15 of the Future Land Use Element to Add Special 
Policy 1.15.4 to Govern Future Development of a Palm Beach State College Campus; 
and 2) Revise the Future Land Use Map to Incorporate a Geographical Reference to 
Special Policy 1.15.4. 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

*************************************************************************** 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

1. OPENING 
 
a. Call to Order & Roll Call 

b. Approval of Agenda 

c. Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair 

 
2. MINUTES: February 9,  2012 
 
3. OLD BUSINESS – None 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Amendment to the Loxahatchee Groves Unified Land Development (ULDC) to Add 
Article 41 - Planned Unit Development  
 

5. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
*************************************************************************** 
 

The next Planning & Zoning Board meeting is  
tentatively scheduled for May 10, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Comments Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the P&Z Board must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the P&Z Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be 
based. Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at 
least 48 hours in advance to request such accommodation. 



Perla
Typewritten Text

Perla
Typewritten Text

Perla
Typewritten Text
LPA: Item 2.a.



















Perla
Typewritten Text
P&Z: Item 2.b.



























PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE
design guidelines FOR:

THe neW CAMPus AT THe TOWn OF lOXAHATCHee gROVes

March 29. 2012





Design gUiDeLines    

site PLanning

Pg  1

Purpose
A Public College Campus within the municipal limits of the Town 
of Loxahatchee Groves was not envisioned when the Town initially 
created and adopted its Unified Land Development Code (ULDC).  
The ULDC recognizes “public schools” but does not contain provisions 
that specifically address development of colleges or universities.   
Development of Public Colleges is regulated by the State of Florida 
under adopted Statutes and Rules, which are implemented by various 
State agencies.  Rule 6A-2.0010, Florida Administrative Code, states 
that the Florida State Board of Education approves and the Florida 
Department of Education/Office of Educational Facilities administers 
the “State Requirements for Educational Facilities” (SREF). In 
conjunction with the Florida Building Code and Florida Fire Prevention 
Code, the SREF requirements govern the physical development of 
Public College facilities.    

As the Town’s Land Development Code does not include specific 
requirements for Public Colleges, a Special Policy adopted in the 
Comprehensive Plan would permit development of the site to be 
regulated by State regulations. The purpose of these Design Guidelines 
is to supplement the State regulations specifically for this Public College 
Campus to allow for its integration into the community and to preserve 
and enhance the character of Loxahatchee Groves.  



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  2

Site Planning
lOXAHATCHee gROVes

The physical layout, orientation, and design of the proposed 
development should consider overall neighborhood character, the 
preservation of existing natural resources, and connectivity to off-site 
uses and activities. Therefore:

• Clustering of development within the campus core is encouraged 
to promote walkability, provide a variety of usable open spaces, 
and promote the preservation of native vegetation.  Site design 
should incorporate design strategies  that attempt to minimize the 
impact on neighboring uses.

• Buildings should be oriented in a manner that shields service 
components such as loading docks, trash areas, chiller plants 
and generators from the adjacent residential uses where feasible.  
Screen walls and/or vegetation may also be used to screen such 
components 

• Site Design should incorporate existing native vegetation and 
natural features that preserve and enhance the character of 
Loxahatchee Groves in accordance with the  approved Master 
Site Development Plan. 

• A network of varied open spaces that facilitate both formal and 
informal interactions is strongly encouraged. 

• Site Design should promote pedestrian connections with adjacent 
uses to encourage convenience, amenities, and positive synergies 
for students, faculty and staff, and the community as a whole.  

• Site Design should consider incorporating greenspace into the 
surface parking areas that can blend with the natural landscape.



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  3

SP1 BUILDING PLACEMENT

sP 1.1  
Building Orientation
Buildings should be sited based on their functional relationship with 
other buildings, site amenities,  support facilities, campus quads 
(discussed below) and open space, natural areas and the surrounding 
community.  Clustering of buildings is encouraged, with the higher 
intensity buildings (i.e. height, floor area) located interior to the site to 
further the  character of the community and retain natural vegetation, 
and to minimize visibility from adjoining residential properties, as set 
forth further in these Design Guidelines.  

sP 1.2  
Campus Quads
Site design should encourage the incorporation of building locations 
which create Campus Quads. Campus quads are open spaces or 
courtyards defined by a cluster of buildings or landscaping that creates 
a delineated yet permeable perimeter.  Campus Quads help preserve 
existing native vegetation by allowing for increased open space thus 
protecting the rural character of Loxahatchee Groves.  The series of 
open spaces will create a pedestrian node at the heart of the campus 
that welcomes visitors and encourages dynamic interior and exterior 
movement and interaction.  Open spaces should incorporate paths, 
seating areas, lawns and landscape  and outdoor study areas where 
feasible to create open air academic amenities and promote spatial 
articulation.

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  4

sP 1.3  
Building setbacks
Buildings should be setback from the property lines to further 
compatibility with adjacent properties, provide for access for emergency 
services, allow for service from public utilities, and be sensitive to natural 
resources. Building setbacks will be determined based on the function 
of each building, its access needs, and its intensity. 

sP 1.4
Height Restriction Zone
Less intense uses on adjacent properties, such as residential uses, 
should be separated from the higher intensity uses associated with a 
College/Higher Education use.  A transitional height restriction zone is 
proposed to provide separation between uses that vary in intensity and 
character.  To provide a transition in mass and scale, buildings within 
250 feet of the northern property line abutting residential uses shall not 
exceed 2 stories and 35 feet. 

Within the Height Restriction Zone, no more than 50% of the land area 
may be utilized for buildings.  Retaining existing vegetation, providing 
supplemental plantings and/or incorporating lakes into the Height 
Restriction Zone is encouraged.

For Illustrative Purposes Only

50’

200’

60’

110’

HeigHT ResTRiCTiOn 
ZOne

RigHT-OF-WAY

Proposed Horse 
Trail for others

PROPERTy LINE

2  Story 
or  35’ Max



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  5

SP2 LANDSCAPING & OPEN SPACE

sP 2.1
Conservation
Existing native vegetation is part of Loxahatchee Groves’ character.  
Site design should incorporate and seek to protect and enhance natural 
resources when feasible, in accordance with the approved Master Site 
Development Plan. New landscaping should complement the native 
plant communities on site and in the surrounding community.

sP 2.2
northern Property line Buffer
A Landscape buffer of no less than 50’ in width of continuous land, as 
measured from the property line, along the northern perimeter of the 
property shall be provided.  The preservation of existing vegetation 
and understory material, and relocation of native landscape into this 
buffer, is encouraged.  Invasive vegetation within this buffer will be 
removed and new material planted such that within two years of the 
time of planting, the landscape buffers understory material shall create 
an opaque buffer that is a minimum of 4’ in height and an average of 
not less than 8’ in height.

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  6

sP 2.3
Right of Way Buffers
The Right of Way Landscape buffers along Southern Boulevard and 
B Road shall be a minimum of 25’ in width and will contain a minimum 
of one shade tree per 20 linear feet of buffer.  The maximum spacing 
between shade trees shall be 60’.  Shade trees shall be a minimum 
of 12’ in height at the time of planting.  Three cabbage palms with 
a minimum of 8’ of clear wood each are permitted in place of any 
required shade tree.  Except when interrupted by vehicular access 
drives, understory plant material shall be provided throughout the 
entire length of the landscape buffer.   Shrubs shall be installed in a 
minimum of two tiers or in plant masses a minimum of three shrubs 
in depth.  When necessary and appropriate, plant materials shall be 
maintained at varied heights, depending on their species, growth 
habit, and intended purpose.  Shrub heights at the time of planting will 
vary between 12” and 36” depending on the species.   Shrub spacing 
will vary between 18” and 72” depending on the shrub size, species, 
location, and growth rate.  Within two years of the time of planting, 
the landscape buffers understory materials shall create a hedge that is 
a minimum of 30” in height.

sP 2.4
Western Perimeter Buffer
A Landscape buffer shall be provided along the western property 
boundary at a minimum of 25’ in width and will contain a minimum 
of one shade tree per 20 linear feet of buffer.  The maximum spacing 
between shade trees shall be 60’.  Shade trees shall be a minimum of 12’ 
in height at the time of planting.  Three cabbage palms with a minimum 
of 8’ of clear wood each are permitted in place of any required shade 
tree.  Understory plant material shall be provided for a minimum of 50% 
of the length of the landscape buffer.   When necessary and appropriate, 
plant materials shall be maintained at varied heights, depending on the 
species, growth habit, and intended purpose.  Shrub heights at the time 
of planting will vary between 12” and 36” depending on the species.   
Shrub spacing will vary between 18” and 72” depending on the shrub 
size, species, location, and growth rate.  



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  7

sP 2.5
Buffers Adjacent to Commercial Parcel
The Landscape buffers adjacent to the Commercial Parcel to the east 
and south of the property shall be a minimum of 10’ in width and will 
contain a minimum of one shade tree per 30 linear feet of buffer.  The 
maximum spacing between shade trees shall be 60’.  Shade trees shall 
be a minimum of 12’ in height at the time of planting.  Three cabbage 
palms with a minimum of 8’ of clear wood are permitted in place of 
any required shade tree.  Understory plant material shall be provided 
for a minimum of 50% of the length of the landscape buffer.   When 
necessary and appropriate, plant materials shall be maintained at 
varied heights, depending on their species, growth habit, and intended 
purpose.  Shrub heights at the time of planting will vary between 12” 
and 36” depending on the species.   Shrub spacing will vary between 18” 
and 72” depending on the shrub size, species, location, and growth rate.  

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  8

sP 2.6
general Requirements
Trees, Slash Pines, Palms and understory plant materials preserved on site may be 
credited towards landscape buffer requirements. Design of the buffer is encouraged 
to emulate a natural Florida woodland. Buffer plant materials are encouraged to be 
installed in an undulating, naturalistic configuration and may provide views into the 
site.  The majority of the buffer plant materials shall be native to Florida, such as:   

Trees:  Live Oaks  Cabbage Palm  Pigeon Plum
   Laurel  Oaks  Green Buttonwood Stoppers
   Mahogany  Gumbo Limbo  Slash Pine
   Red Maple  Dahoon Holly  Redbay
   Southern Red Cedar Bald Cypress

Understory Saw Palmetto  Myrsine   Wax Myrtle
   Wild Coffee  Firebush  Cocoplum
   Fiddlewood  Stoppers  Beautyberry
   Dwarf yaupon  Fakahatchee Grass Spartina
   Jamaica  Caper  Muley Grass  Gama Grass
   Fetterbush  Walter’s Viburnum Coontie

Plant materials listed are for reference purposes only, alternative species may be 
substituted depending upon availability. 

In order to enhance screening and provide amenities for the campus, buffers may be 
comprised of preserved native vegetation or new plantings, recreation, greenways 
and/or pedestrian and bicycle paths.  Additional improvements allowed with buffers 
include screening or fencing materials, utilities and detention areas.  Locating lakes in 
proximity to buffers is encouraged.

Installation of Landscape Buffers will be phased in accordance with the construction 
of the campus.



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  9

sP 2.7
Recreational Zones and Open spaces
Recreational Zones and Open Spaces are permitted throughout 
the property.  Recreational Zones and Open Spaces may be used as 
passive or active areas; and are encouraged to facilitate both formal 
and informal interactions. 

Active recreational zones such as sports fields and courts are 
encouraged to utilize pedestrian path networks to connect with other 
portions of the property.  Preservation areas  and buffers may be 
utilized for passive recreation purposes when such use will not interfere 
with the viability of the natural area and the health of the landscaping 
within the buffer.   Passive trails may include pedestrian or bicycle trials 
connecting the property internally or to neighboring residential uses.

The integration of pedestrian and bicycle trails into buffers and 
preservation areas is encouraged providing that such uses are not 
detrimental to the ecology.   Integrated passive trails also offer an 
opportunity to establish pedestrian connections with adjacent uses 
to encourage convenience, amenities, and positive synergies for its 
students, faculty and staff, and the community as a whole.

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  10

SP3 PARKING

sP 3.1
surface Parking lot design

a. northern Property line screening
Parking lots adjacent to the northern property line should be screened 
to minimize visibility from residential uses located north of the campus. 
Screening may include landscaping (including existing native and new 
vegetation), fencing, and/or berms.

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        

site PLanning

Pg  11

b. landscaping
To help reduce the heat index and further contribute to the rural 
character of Loxahatchee Groves, parking lots should provide canopy 
trees and planting areas when feasible.  

c. Pedestrian Walkways and lighting for Parking lots
In order to create a safe and protected pedestrian environment, 
walkways should be provided that conveniently connect surface parking 
lots to campus buildings.  For safety purposes, surface parking lots 
should be lit.  Cut off lighting or other methods to minimize glare and 
light spillover is encouraged.

d. Paving Materials
To reduce stormwater runoff and increase groundwater recharge, 
pervious paving materials such as grass pavers, pervious asphalt or 
concrete, and gravel are permitted.

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        Pg  12

architectUraL Design anD character

Architectural Design                                                                                                                                           
               and Character

lOXAHATCHee gROVes

Building design should foster and encourage social interaction, 
create visual connections to exterior spaces and natural features, and 
promote convenient pedestrian connections.  Facade articulation, 
building materials and textures, and architectural details should 
utilize architecture that considers the  character of the community.  
Therefore:

• Buildings should be designed in consideration of the character 
of the community as set forth below.  The use of elements/
styles/materials not specifically referenced shall not constitute 
a building to be out of character or non-compliant with the 
character of the community.

• Buildings should be oriented to maximize passive design 
strategies and incorporate innovative systems that promote 
sustainable design.



Design gUiDeLines        Pg  13

architectUraL Design anD character

AD1 MASSING AND SCALE

Ad 1.1
Building Footprint & length
Large volumes and long, uninterrupted building facades are 
discouraged.  Instead, buildings that break the roofline and 
divide large building planes into separate volumes and forms are 
encouraged.

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        Pg  14

architectUraL Design anD character

AD2 BUILDING ARTICULATION, 
FACADE & ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT

Ad 2.1 
Materials and Building Textures
Buildings are encouraged to incorporate materials and textures associated 
with the rural character of the neighborhood such as natural stones, 
precast concrete, textured concrete block, textured stucco, and fiber 
cement siding (also known as “Hardie Board”).

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        Pg  15

architectUraL Design anD character

Ad 2.2 
Roof and Terraces

a. Rooftops and Terraces
Roofs are permitted to be multi-functional and incorporate 
recreational, leisure, and other active spaces which take advantage 
of natural views and moderate temperatures. Vegetated roofs, rain 
barrels, and solar panels may also be incorporated to either enhance 
energy efficiency, stormwater management, or conservation value.

b. Mechanical equipment
Roof top mechanical equipment and appurtenances such as cooling 
towers, elevator, stairs, vent stacks, and antennas should be screened 
from view at street level and from adjacent residential uses, and inte-
grated into the overall building design.  

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        Pg  16

architectUraL Design anD character

Ad 3.1 
Fenestration that promotes energy efficiency
Windows and similar transparent openings, and reflective surfaces 
should be placed in a manner to maximize the sunlight in an effort 
to promote energy efficency.  The incorporation of other energy 
efficient building systems is also encouraged. Energy efficient systems 
may include passive features such as large overhangs, breezeways, 
and louvers, as well as active features such as solar panels and other 
mechanical systems. 
 

AD3 SUSTAINABLE DESIGN

For Illustrative Purposes Only



Design gUiDeLines        Pg  17

architectUraL Design anD character

AD4 SIGNAGE

Ad 4.1 
standards
College signage should be designed in consideration of the 
character of the community to ensure a visually cohesive 
environment that reflects, rather than detracts from, the quality 
of the College and the surrounding neighborhood.  To that 
end, signs are encouraged to incorporate materials and textures 
associated with the community and the College architectural 
design. Entry, informational and directional signage for vehicles 
and pedestrians, and building identification should be horizontal 
in format and installed lower to the ground in order to improve 
readability and minimize potential negative visual impacts.  
Directional signage should be coordinated throughout the site, 
including major vehicular and pedestrian access points.  Signs 
with raised and/or carved lettering and images are encouraged. 
Signs may be illuminated and include electronic display.

For Illustrative Purposes Only



 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting, February 9, 2012                                                                                            Page 1 of 4 
 

 

   Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
          Planning and Zoning Board Regular Meeting 

         Thursday, February 9, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
          Town Hall Conference Room, 14579 Southern Blvd, Suite 2 

 
MINUTES 

 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Chair Dennis Lipp called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Present were Chair Dennis Lipp, Vice 
Chair Robin Crawford and Board Members Grace Joyce, Lawrence Corning, Keith Harris, and 
Veronica Close (Alternate #1). Also present were Town Manager Mark Town Manager Kutney 
and Office Coordinator Stephen Hainline. 
 
Motion: Board Member Harris moved to approve the Agenda. Vice Chair Crawford seconded 
the motion, which passed unanimously. (Motion carried 5-0.) 
 
2. MINUTES 
 

a. December 8, 2011 
 

Board Member Close questioned the number of public comments. The Board discussed her 
inquiry and found that the numbers were correct. 
 
Motion: Board Member Close moved to approve the minutes of December 8, 2011. Board 
Member Harris seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. (Motion carried 5-0).  
 
3. LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY - None 
 
4. OLD BUSINESS - None 
 
5. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Planning Study for Okeechobee Blvd 
 

Town Manager Kutney started discussions about the recommendation to Town Council of not 
doing a study of Okeechobee Blvd. and requested the Committee to provide recommendations. 
Board started discussions. Board Member Grace questioned the term study. The following input 
was given by the Board: resident input and cutting down the desire of cut through traffic. 
 
Motion: Vice Chair Crawford moved to enter the traffic data into the records. Board Member 
Harris seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. (Motion carried 5-0). 
 

Perla
Typewritten Text

Perla
Typewritten Text
P&Z: Item 2



 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting, February 9, 2012                                                                                            Page 2 of 4 
 

Discussions continued about the traffic count numbers and how they affected the traffic on 
Okeechobee Blvd. The Board also discussed the classifications that were designated on the road 
and the possible desire to reclassify. 
 
The Board asked for current standings. Town Planner Jim Fleischman informed them of the 
overall rural residential zoning. Town Planner Fleischman commented that the current zoning 
map was not as accurate as should be. Board Member Board Member Close suggested that 
remapping should be part of the study. Town Manager Town Manager Kutney explained about 
the planning process and the burdens placed upon them.  
 
Chair Lipp stated that the County made the Town place a certain amount of commercial zoning 
on Okeechobee Blvd. or they would not approve. He suggested adjusting the FAR. Chair Lipp 
commented not to use an outside planning source such as Treasure Coast due to the cost. Board 
Member Board Member Corning explained how the ULDC was established addressing the fact 
that the Town was formed, so it would not be governed by the County. Board Member Joyce 
stated she was not a developer, explained what she did with the City of West Palm Beach and 
spoke in favor of commercial development in order to grow the Town and the adjusted FAR. She 
said she was not in favor of another study. Board Member Corning gave his background of 
experience and spoke in favor of doing more studies. Board Member Harris expressed wanting a 
better uniform policy and spoke in favor of another study. Vice Chair Crawford questioned the 
forming of the study and questioned the type of plan to move forward.  
 
The Board then discussed about how the development of the college was going to affect the 
entire town. Town Planner Fleishman explained the FAR concept. Resident Frank Schiola 
commented looking at the existing road and what was there now in comparison to the future 
development and spoke of the idea of the County buying retention ponds. Town Manager Kutney 
recommended having an overall vision. Board Member Close recommended further studies 
internally and giving the residents the ability to respond directing the overall vision. Chair Lipp 
stated to stay on focus to establish the goal/vision and expressed that he was in favor of a master 
plan.  
 
Public Comment: 
 
Public Comment:  Resident John Ryan stated his concern regarding Okeechobee Blvd. as being a 
constant community assembly area. 
 
Board Member Grace agreed to maybe use a facilitator as long as they keep in mind the rural 
theme, not urban.  
 
Public Comment: Resident Mary McNicholas stated that she felt that it was imperative to give 
the Town Council proper direction.  
 
Chair Lipp stated that Okeechobee Blvd. should be a residential area not commercial, keeping 
the commercial development on Southern Blvd. 
 
Motion: Board Member Corning moved to keep Okeechobee Blvd as a residential area. The 
motion failed due to no second. 
 



 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting, February 9, 2012                                                                                            Page 3 of 4 
 

Board Member Close explained the goal and process. Board Member Grace suggested 
recommending a limited non-residential development on Okeechobee Blvd. and to stop 
development after the Town meeting the County’s requirement.  
 
Chair Lipp suggested that Town Manager Kutney convey to the Town Council that the mixed 
use along Okeechobee Blvd. was not accepted, but that the Planning & Zoning Board would 
come up with three (3) options to put before the residents for a community vote. He clarified 
recommending having a community workshop first, then to formulate the three (3) options to the 
Town Council. 
  
Chair Lipp passed the gavel to Vice Chair Crawford.  
 
Motion: Chair Lipp moved to propose to the Town Council that the Planning & Zoning Board 
have a community workshop for input and come back with three (3) options on Okeechobee 
Blvd. direction for their opinion. Board Member Corning seconded the motion. Board Member 
Grace proposed a friendly amendment to include a community workshop. Board Member Close 
seconded the friendly amendment. Both Chair Lipp and Board Member Corning accepted the 
friendly amendment. (Motion carried 5-0.) 
 
Vice Chair Crawford passed gavel back to Chair Lipp at this time. 
 

b. Conflicts of Interest for Voting 
 

Town Manager Kutney explained the state requirements as to abstaining from a vote and that a 
member could not pass on voting unless there was a conflict. 
 

c. Legal Requirements for Minutes Preparation 
 

Town Manager Kutney explained about the minutes and explained how Staff intended to 
proceed. He also commented about having another venue for bigger function. He noted that if 
there were no compelling issues, there would be no meeting called. 
 
Chair Lipp suggested the March 8th meeting be the community workshop. He also recommended 
that the Board provide Town Manager Kutney with five (5) questions.  
 
6. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 
 
Board Member Close wanted to know why there were no audios of the meetings on the website. 
Town Manager Kutney explained. 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion: Board Member Grace moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:19 p.m. Vice Chair Crawford 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. (Motion carried 5-0). 
 
 

These minutes were approved by the  
Board on Thursday, April 12, 2012. 



 
Planning and Zoning Board Meeting, February 9, 2012                                                                                            Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
              
Stephen Hainline, Office Coordinator   Dennis Lipp, Chair 
 
 
SEAL 



Perla
Typewritten Text
P&Z: Item 4.a






























